
1

TO THE CHAIRMAN AND MEMBERS OF THE 
LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE A

You are hereby summoned to attend a meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee A to be held on 
Wednesday, 1 August 2018 at 10.30 am in the Council Chamber, Civic Offices, Gloucester 
Square, Woking, Surrey GU21 6YL.

The agenda for the meeting is set out below.

RAY MORGAN
Chief Executive

NOTE:  Filming Council Meetings

Please note the meeting will be filmed and will be broadcast live and subsequently as an archive on the 
Council’s website (www.woking.gov.uk).  The images and sound recording will also be used for training 
purposes within the Council.  Generally the public seating areas are not filmed.  However by entering the 
meeting room and using the public seating area, you are consenting to being filmed.

AGENDA
PART I - PRESS AND PUBLIC PRESENT

1. Minutes 
To approve the minutes of the meeting of the Licensing Sub-Committee A held on 21 June 
2018 as published.

2. Declarations of Interest 
To receive declarations of disclosable pecuniary and other interests from Members in 
respect of any item to be considered at the meeting.

3. Urgent Business 
To consider any business that the Chairman rules may be dealt with under Section 100B(4) 
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Matters for Determination

4. Review of a Premises Licence - Harry's Store, 2 Walton Road, Woking (Pages 3 - 80)
Reporting Officer – Matt Cobb

Public Document Pack



2

5. Review of a Premises Licence - Budgens, 1 Chertsey Road, Woking (Pages 81 - 134)
Reporting Officer – Matt Cobb

AGENDA ENDS

Date Published – 23 July 2018

For further information regarding this agenda and 
arrangements for the meeting, please contact Doug 
Davern on 01483 743018 or email 
doug.davern@woking.gov.uk



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE A – 1 AUGUST 2018

REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – HARRY’S, 2 WALTON ROAD, WOKING

Executive Summary

This report considers an application to review the Premises Licence (PL) for the above 
premises from Surrey Police.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE THAT the report be considered and the application be determined 
accordingly. 

The Sub-Committee has the authority to determine the above recommendation.

Background Papers:

Application form 
Operating Schedule
Representations from Statutory Bodies and Interested Parties
Sustainability Impact Assessment
Equalities Impact Assessment

Reporting Person:

Matthew Cobb, Senior Licensing Officer
Ext. 3650, E Mail: Matthew.Cobb@woking.gov.uk

Contact Person:

Matthew Cobb, Senior Licensing Officer
Ext. 3650, E Mail: Matthew.Cobb@woking.gov.uk

Date Published:

23 July 2018

Page 3

Agenda Item 4.



1.0 Summary of Proposal 

Application Type: Review of Premises Licence

Variation: No

Site Address: 2 Walton Road, Woking, Surrey, GU21 5DL

Applicant Surrey Police, Woking

Application Ref: 07/00360/PREMIS

2.0 Description of Premises and Existing Licence

2.1 Small retail shop with off-licence

2.2 Current licensed hours of operation are:

Sale of Alcohol, Monday to Saturday inclusive – 08:00 to 22:00

Sale of Alcohol, Monday to Saturday inclusive – 10:00 to 22:00

Opening Hours, Monday to Saturday inclusive – 08:00 to 23:00

Opening Hours, Monday to Saturday inclusive – 10:00 to 22:00

3.0 The “Harveys” Connection 

3.1 In April 2007 an application for a Premises Licence was received for “Harveys” – a small 
shop located at 1 Central Buildings, Chobham Road, Woking. The applicants, which 
included Mr Pardeep Dhesi, had requested alcohol till 23:00 at night. 

3.2 Following objections, a Premises Licence Hearing was held on the 20 June 2007, 
whereupon the licensable hours were reduced to finish an hour earlier at 22:00 and a set 
of specific conditions were proposed and accepted. 

3.3 In September 2007 an application for a Premises Licence was received for “Harry’s” – a 
small shop located at 2 Walton Road, Woking. The applicant – Miss Pavendeep Dhesi, 
had requested alcohol till 23:00 at night. 

3.4 Following an objection from Surrey Police Licensing Officer, a set of conditions were 
offered up by the applicants. These were proposed with the opening line “The Premise 
Licence for Harry’s shall be the same as that of Harvey’s.” 

3.5 A copy of the Licence Application and accompanying emails between Surrey Police 
Licensing and Woking Licencing are attached as Appendix 1.

3.6 The venue has various conditions attached to its Operating Schedule / Licence to help 
promote the licensing objectives. A full copy of the licence as issued is attached as 
Appendix 2.  

4.0 Details of Application

4.1 Surrey Police have called for a review of the premises licence on the grounds that it 
believes the Licensing Objectives of prevention of crime and disorder and the protection 

Page 4



of children from harm are being adversely affected. The full application is attached as 
Appendix 3.  

5.0 Promotion of Licensing Objectives

5.1 The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting the 
licensing objectives which are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;

 Public safety;

 The prevention of public nuisance;

 The protection of children from harm.

6.0 Relevant Representations

6.1 The following representations have been received in relation to the application:

Responsible Authorities

Surrey Police: Original review application, attached as Appendix 3

Surrey Fire and Rescue Service: No representations received.

Environmental Health (WBC): No representations received.

Planning Authority (WBC): No representations received.

Social Services (SCC): No representations received.

Trading Standards: Representations received, attached as Appendix 4

Interested Parties

Members of Public: No representations received.

Other Persons: Representations received from Emma Ibrahim, 
Woking Borough Councils Anti-Social Behaviour 
officer. Attached as Appendix 5.

The Licensing Authority has made comment. This 
is attached as Appendix 6. 

7.0 Policy Considerations

7.1 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is obliged to have regard to the relevant 
national Guidance (Appendix 7) and the Council’s own Licensing Policy.  The Sub-
Committee must also have regard to all of the representations made and the evidence it 
hears, and its duty under S17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

7.2 The Licensing Officer considered the following policies taken from the ‘Licensing Policy 
for Woking Borough’ should be considered for this application. 

Page 5



From Woking Borough Council Licensing Policy 2016-2021

6.5 The Council can only attach conditions to licences where necessary to ensure the licensing 
objectives are served and may include conditions drawn from the Pool of Conditions relating to 
the licensing objectives contained in the guidance issued under the Act. When considering 
conditions, the Council will focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed 
premises on members of the public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area 
concerned and those matters which are within the control of the applicant on the premises and 
in the vicinity of those premises. Whether or not incidents can be regarded as in the vicinity of 
licensed premises is a question of fact and will depend upon the particular circumstances of the 
case.

6.6 The Council acknowledges that licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general 
control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the premises and 
beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or 
authorisation concerned.

7.0 The Licensing Objectives (Prevention of Crime and Disorder)

7.1  The Council will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the prevention of 
crime and disorder and will seek to ensure that licensees take measures to regulate the 
behaviour of persons whilst on their premises, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises as 
they seek to enter or leave.

7.2   In addition to the requirement for the Council to promote this licensing objective, it also has 
a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to exercise its functions with due 
regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and to do all it reasonably can to 
prevent, crime and disorder in the Borough.

7.3 The Council will expect applicants to include in their operating schedules the steps they 
propose to take to reduce/deter crime and disorder. These steps will vary from premises to 
premises and according to the type of licensable activities that are to be carried on.

In particular, the Council will expect applicants to address the following matters.

 Physical security features e.g. use of toughened drinking glasses.

 Procedures for the risk assessment of alcohol promotions, such as ‘happy hours’ 
(please see 7.5).

 The use of licensed door supervisors.

 Amount of seating to be provided to reduce issues in high volume vertical drinking 
(HVVD) establishments. 

 Training given to staff in crime prevention measures.

 Measures agreed with the police to reduce crime and disorder.

Page 6



Participation in the Woking Pubwatch Scheme will be expected of licence applicants for all bar, 
pub and nightclub premises in the Borough.

7.4   N/A

7.5   N/A

7.6 The Council recognises that licence conditions should not replicate offences that are set out 
in the Licensing Act or other legislation. With this in mind, the Council will, when considering an 
application for a premises licence upon the receipt of relevant representations, consider 
attaching conditions to licences and certificates to deter and prevent crime and disorder both 
inside and in the immediate vicinity of the premises. These may include conditions drawn from 
the Pool of Conditions relating to the prevention of crime and disorder. Any such conditions 
imposed will be tailored to the style and characteristics of the premises and the type of activities 
that take place there.

8.0 The Licensing Objectives (Protection of Children from Harm)

10.1 The Council will carry out their licensing functions with a view to protecting children from 
harm. In addition to the specific prohibitions in the Licensing Act on the access of 
unaccompanied children to certain premises between certain hours, licensees will be expected 
to take measures to ensure the safety and welfare of children on their premises. The Council is 
committed to reducing the problems arising from under-age drinking and to protect children 
from moral, psychological or physical harm. 

10.2 The Council will expect applicants to include in their operating schedules the steps they 
propose to take to prevent harm to children. In particular, the Council will expect applicants to 
address the following matters within their operating schedules.

 Where alcohol is to be sold, applicants must include details of the measures they 
propose to prevent the supply of alcohol to children. It is expected that:

a)  in addition to requiring passports or photo driving licences, a proof of age 
scheme approved and accredited by the Proof of Age Standards Scheme 
(PASS) e.g. Citizen Card, Connexions Card, Portman Card will be in operation

b) staff will receive regular and adequate training on the law and practice relating to 
age restricted sales (including challenging purchasers and checking 
identification), such training to be properly documented and records made 
available for inspection. Trading Standards encourage retailers to train their staff 
specifically about what forms of ID are acceptable and how to check that they 
are genuine in order to avoid selling to young people using fake ID (currently a 
growing concern due to the easy access to fakes online and the increasing 
sophistication of fakes).

c) registers of refused sales will be maintained and made available for inspection. 

d) a policy of requesting suitable photographic identification from those appearing 
to be below or close an age limit above the legal age for alcohol sale/purchase , 
for example, Challenge 25. In line with Trading Standards, the adoption of a 
'Challenge 25' age verification policy is particularly recommended as this is now 

Page 7



accepted as best practice by industry and enforcing authorities.

 Applicants must indicate whether they are signatories to the Portman Group Code of 
Practice (see 10.6.6).

 Where children are expected to attend regulated entertainment, the measures proposed 
to ensure their safety.

10.3 The Surrey Child Protection Unit will be consulted on applications for premises licences 
and club premises certificates.

10.4 Applicants needing advice on how to avoid age-restricted sales may contact Surrey 
Trading Standards.

10.5 The Council will consider attaching conditions to licences and certificates to prevent 
harm to children, and these may include items drawn from the Pool of Conditions relating to the 
protection of children from harm. 

10.6 Child access to licensed premises

10.6.1 The Council will consider the individual merits of each application before deciding 
whether it is necessary to limit the access of children to any given premises. The following are 
examples of premises that will raise particular concern.

 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the premises for 
serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking.

 Where there is a known association with drug taking or dealing.

 Where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive or primary 
purpose of the services provided at the premises.

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for example, the 
simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines).

 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are commonly provided. 
The Council will not normally grant permission for entertainment of an adult or sexual 
nature in premises near schools, churches, youth clubs or other premises where 
children are likely to attend.

10.6.2 The Council may consider that additional steps for limiting the access of children to 
licensed premises are necessary in order to prevent harm. These steps (which may be adopted 
in combination) include:

 limitations on the hours when children may be present

 limitations on the presence of children under certain ages when particular specified 
activities are taking place

 limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given access age 
limitations (below 18)

 Requirements for an accompanying adult (including, for example, a combination of 
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied 

Page 8



by an adult)

 full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 
taking place.

10.6.3  Conditions will not be attached to licences or certificates requiring that children be 
admitted to any premises. Where no licensing restriction is necessary, this will be left to the 
discretion of the individual licensee, club or person who has been given a temporary event 
notice. Applicants for premises licences and club premises certificates may volunteer 
prohibitions and restrictions in their operating schedules if their risk assessments have 
determined that the presence of children is undesirable or inappropriate. If the Council receives 
no relevant representations, these volunteered prohibitions and restrictions will become 
conditions attaching to the licence or certificate.

10.6.4 N/A

10.6.5 The Council supports PASS, which aims to approve and accredit proof of age schemes 
to assist in preventing underage access to unsuitable premise and the purchasing of alcohol. 
This scheme, introduced by the British Retail Consortium and audited by the Trading Standards 
Institute, identifies reliable and secure proof of age schemes with the same hologram mark in 
order that retailers can easily distinguish accredited cards from forgeries or cards under 
unreliable schemes.

10.6.6 The Council supports the aims of the Portman Group and commends the Portman 
Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks to all 
applicants.

 The Portman Group operates the Code on behalf of the alcohol industry with the aim of 
ensuring that all alcoholic drinks are promoted in a socially responsible manner and only 
to those aged 18 years or older.

 The Code is an important weapon in protecting children from harm because it 
addresses the naming, marketing and promotion of alcohol products in licensed 
premises in a manner which may appeal to or attract children. An independent 
complaints panel considers complaints about products under the Code, and publishes 
their decisions on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in its annual 
report.

 If a product’s packaging or point of sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code, 
the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision 
and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point of sale 
material, until the decision has been complied with.

 If a retailer continues to stock products or point of sale material which have been found 
in breach of the Code by the Independent Complaints Panel, the Portman Group may 
notify the Council and request it to take this into account, subject to legal requirements, 
when considering whether to grant, transfer, renew or revoke licences. Breaches of the 
Code may also be notified to the Local Authorities Co-ordinators of Regulatory Services 
(LACORS), which may, in some cases, lead to prosecutions under appropriate 
legislation 

 Companies may indicate their support for the Code and their willingness to abide by the 
decisions of the Independent Complaints Panel by becoming code signatories.

Page 9



8.0 The Licensing Objectives (Prevention of Nuisance)

9.1 The Council will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the prevention of 
public nuisance and will seek to ensure that licensees take measures to minimise the 
impact of licensable activities at their premises on people living, working or sleeping in the 
vicinity. The prevention of public nuisance can include low-level nuisance affecting a few 
people living locally, as well as major disturbance affecting the whole community.

9.2 The Council’s concerns mainly relate to noise nuisance, light pollution and noxious smells. 
Applicants are expected to include in their operating schedules the steps they propose to 
take to address these issues and prevent public nuisance. In particular, the Council will 
expect applicants to address the following matters in their operating schedules:

 installation of a sound limiting device

 soundproofing measures e.g. from keeping doors and windows closed to double door 
entry/exit systems. Where the premises are to include open areas e.g. pub gardens, 
the applicant will be expected to specify how they intend to minimise nuisance from 
such areas

 measures to be taken to prevent/minimise nuisance caused by the delivery and disposal 
of bottles

 measures/procedures for controlling the behaviour of patrons in queues

 measures for the winding down of alcohol sales

 measures to be taken to prevent/minimise nuisance caused by the dispersal of patrons 
from the premises e.g. the erection of prominent notices requesting customers to leave 
in a quiet manner, loudspeaker announcements, reduction in volume and tempo of the 
music towards the end of the evening giving away free lollipops to customers as they 
leave to discourage loud behaviour, procedures for the collection of litter in the vicinity 
of the premises, procedures to bar customers who regularly leave the premises in a 
noisy manner, means of accessing local licensed taxi services. Applicants are advised 
to seek advice from the Council’s licensing officers before preparing their operating 
schedules.

9.3 It is now illegal to smoke in an enclosed public place. Whilst smoking is not a regulated 
activity under the Act, the volume of patrons smoking outside premises will increase 
greatly. Provisions for the collection of litter have already been mentioned, but premises 
should take particular steps to combat litter from smoking, as it will be easier to attribute 
this to a particular premise and is more likely to generate complaints. Persistent 
complaints can lead to a call for a licence review, on the grounds of public nuisance from 
a responsible authority.

9.4 The Council will take an objective view as to the potential for nuisance and will seek to 
attach appropriate and proportionate conditions to premises licences and club premises 
certificates where necessary in order to prevent it. These may include conditions drawn 
from the Pool of Conditions relating to the prevention of public nuisance. Any such 
conditions imposed will be tailored to the style and characteristics of the premises and the 

Page 10



type of activities expected to take place there.

7.3 The “Pool of Conditions” is provided as Appendix 8.

7.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives:

(a) to modify the conditions of the licence; (either permanently or temporarily for up to 
three months);

(b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; (either permanently or 
temporarily for up to three months);

(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor (not applicable where alcohol is not 
licensed)

(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

(e) to revoke the licence;

Committee may also offer informal advice and guidance or take no further action.
7.5 The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the conditions or reject the 

whole or part of the application merely because it considers it desirable to do so.  It must 
actually be necessary in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

8.0 Implications

Financial

8.1 There are no significant financial implications. The applicant, licence holder and any 
interested parties or responsible authorities who have made a representation have the 
right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court (within 21 days starting the day after the date a 
decision is reached) should they feel any decision is unjust. Although there is a possibility 
costs may be awarded against the Council where decisions are overturned, case law 
shows this as unlikely where the Council are shown to be acting in accordance with their 
duties as Licensing Authority based on information supplied at the time.

Human Resource/Training and Development

8.2 None. 

Community Safety

8.3 Improving standards and ensuring compliance can potentially improve community safety 
in line with the Licensing Objectives as set out in the Licensing Act 2003

Risk Management

8.4 The risks to the Council associated with determining an application are:

 Failure to undertake our statutory responsibilities within required timescales;

Page 11



 Making a decision that could be challenged by the applicant via an appeal to the 
Magistrates Court with the possible consequence of costs being awarded against 
the Council; and

 Making a decision that compromises Community Safety.
8.5 These risks have been dealt with in the report under section 6.0 by highlighting that the 

Sub-Committee is required to determine this application for a premises licences under the 
Licensing Act 2003 having due regard to the four licensing objectives, national guidance, 
the local licensing policy, relevant representations and evidence presented at the 
hearings.  Determining applications in this way will reduce the risk of the decisions of the 
Council being open to challenge via appeal to the Magistrates court and promote 
Community Safety in the Borough. 

Sustainability

8.6 The four licensing objectives addressed in the Council’s licensing policy, which the Sub-
Committee is obliged to have regard to in making its decision, are in line with the 
Council’s sustainability aims.

9.0 Conclusions

9.1 The Committee is asked to consider the review application, contents of this report and its 
appendices, the evidence and representations presented, answers to questions posed 
and deliver its decision with reasons.

REPORT ENDS

Appendix 1 – Harry’s Licence Application Information

Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



Page 25



Appendix 2 – Harry’s Premises Licence

Page 26



Page 27



Page 28



Page 29



Page 30



Page 31



Page 32



Page 33



Page 34



Page 35



Appendix 3 – Surrey Police Review Application
 

Page 36



Page 37



Page 38



Page 39



Page 40



Page 41



Appendix 4 – Trading Standards Representation

Page 42



Page 43



Page 44



Appendix 5 – Anti Social Behaviour Representation

From: Emma Ibrahim 
Sent: 18 July 2018 14:59
Subject: Harry's Licence Review

I am the Antisocial Behaviour Officer for Woking Borough Council. I have been notified of the 
licence review for Harry’s, 2 Walton Road, Woking, GU21 5DL. I have been dealing with issues 
in relation to this premises.

In April I was contacted by an occupant of William Booth Place expressing concerns with 
regards to a number of men who gather at the entrance to the building site to the rear of William 
Booth Place. There is a concrete block in front of the gates to the site which the men sit on. The 
men drink, smoke cannabis, shout, argue and become very rowdy. They urinate on the public 
footpath and deposit a large amount of rubbish such as beer bottles and cans and takeaway 
food packaging around the area. They harass passers by and also fight which has led to the 
police being called on more than one occasion.

The complainant once approached the men to try to explain the disturbance they are causing, 
their balcony overlooks where the men congregate. One of the men blew kisses at the 
complainant, another undid his trousers and urinated in front of her while laughing. All the men 
laughed at jeered at this action which obviously left the complainant very distressed and 
intimidated. On another occasion the complainant was on their balcony holding a mobile phone. 
The men started shouting abuse and one of them ran towards the balcony, jumped up and tried  
to spit over it at the complainant. This again left the complainant very shaken and distressed.

This had been happening since the resident moved in a year ago. The police have been called 
several times but as the area is just outside of the PSPO there is little that can be done to move 
them on unless they are committing a crime. Sadly the resident has made the decision to move 
out of the area as they feel it is not acceptable having to deal with this behaviour almost every 
day

In addition to the disturbance caused to local residents, the other issue caused by the drinkers 
is litter. A narrow strip of land in between the rear of William Booth Place and the boundary wall 
had become filled to approximately a foot deep with beer cans and bottles. Also, behind the 
concrete block where the men sit the rubbish had built up even higher and started to go under 
the gate into the construction site. This included several take away food packages which would 
encourage vermin.

This problem has proved to be costly. Myself and 2 PCSOs spent a morning carrying out a door 
knocking exercise at William Booth Place. Unfortunately not many residents were home but the 
few we spoke to were aware of the drinkers and avoided them when possible. I have also spent 
a considerable amount of time tracking down those responsible for clearing the rubbish. HML 
Andertons who manage William Booth Place, and Surrey County Council who are currently 
responsible for the construction site, both had to attend and clear the rubbish.

With regards to the licence review I believe in respect of Prevention of Crime and Disorder, 
Harry’s is not acting responsibly. As you can see from the photos attached, it would seem that a 
large percentage of the bottles and cans were purchased at Harry’s. The price labels and prices 
are identical and there is not another shop in the nearby vicinity where some of these drinks 
could be purchased. While there is a litter bin outside the shop and the shop front itself is 
always kept reasonably tidy, no attempt has been made to help reduce the litter accumulating 
approximately 20 feet from the shop entrance. A more serious concern is that the men regularly 
go into Harry’s to buy alcohol, often already obviously drunk. Despite having been asked by 

Page 45



police, the resident and myself, Harry’s continue to serve them, adding to an already volatile 
situation.

With regards to Protection of Children from Harm, this responsibility is also not being met as the 
drinkers often gather as early as 3 or 4pm and have been witnessed by the resident staring at 
school girls passing by and making inappropriate comments.

If you require anything further please contact me.

Kind regards
Emma

Emma Ibrahim | Anti Social Behaviour Officer

Page 46



Old Youth Club Site Walton Road

Page 47



Rear of William Booth Place 

Page 48



Harrys bottles with price labels matching empties shown in other photos. 

Page 49



Appendix 6 – Licensing Authority Statement

On Monday the 11th of June 2018, the Licensing Department was notified by Surrey Police that 
they had carried out a series of test purchases on various licenced premises in the Woking 
area, one of which was Harry’s on 2 Walton Road. They informed us that this was the second 
time in three months that the premises had failed a test purchase and that further action would 
be required. 

On the 19th of June 2018 we received notification from Surrey Police that the Part B of the 
Licence that was on display in the premises shows a final alcohol sale time of 23:00, which was 
at odds with what the actual issued licence stated. The premises is only licenced until 22:00 
and so has been trading an hour over its licenced time since 2007. Unfortunately due to the 
time frame, we have not been able to establish why there is a Part B of the Licence with an 
incorrect date on it. We cannot say whether it was an intentional deception by the premises or 
an error by the Licensing Authority. As per the records, the premises initially applied for a finish 
time of 23:00 but during the 2007 Consultation period, it was reduced to 22:00. The applied-for 
times may have been entered onto the system when the application was received but not 
corrected prior to the licence being issued. Had this been the case, a second corrected licence 
would have been sent out to the applicants for their use – and they would have been aware of 
the incorrect times. 

As a result of this information, on the 20th of June 2018, Senior Licensing Officer Matthew 
Cobb and Licensing Officer Derrick Laing made a visit to the premises at about 15:30 to correct 
the wrongly displayed licence. We provided them with a copy of the licence as it should have 
been issued and spoke to a Mr Sarwan Singh Dhesi. Mr Dhesi does not hold a personal licence 
and as such the premises was in breach of the conditions of its licence. Specifically, that at 
least one Personal Licence holder must be on site at all times to authorise the sale of Alcohol. 

On the 21st of June 2018 a further inspection was carried out by Senior Licensing Officer 
Matthew Cobb and Surrey Police Licensing Officer Geanine Crowley. At about 13:30 the 
premises were visited and yet again there was no Personal Licence holder on site, only Mr 
Sarwan Singh Dhesi, and as such any sales of alcohol were not being carried out in 
accordance with the conditions of the premises licence. 
Geanine Crowley asked to see their incident log – as during a previous visit to the premises, 
the Premises Licence Holder, Miss Pavendeep Dhesi, had not been able to produce it and had 
been advised that it was a requirement of the licence. 
An incident log was produced that sporadically covered periods between 2014 and 2018. The 
majority of the refusals were signed by a “J Rose” or a “J E Rose”. When Mr Dhesi was asked 
about this he initially said it was a family member, then stated it was a friend, then stated it was 
someone who doesn’t work at the shop. He finally stated it was a friend of the family who 
comes in once a week to complete the forms for them. This is then clearly not an accurate log 
of incidents and makes a mockery of the condition to be on the licence at all. This is evidenced 
by the confusion in some of the log entries (for example, 25/3/17 it states that a “man who was 
over the limit” was refused a can of beer. In the description it describes him as a “School boy 
with no I.D.”) 

The Licensing Authority has concerns over the way this premises is being run – specifically in 
light of recent incidents, the Premises Licence Holder appears to have not taken any advice on 
board from the Police regarding how to bring their licence up to scratch, or carried out any 
actions that show they have tried to make improvements following the repeated sale of alcohol 
to minors.

Page 50



Page 51



Page 52



Page 53



Page 54



Page 55



Page 56



Appendix 7 – Excerpts from the National Guidance

The licensing objectives Crime and disorder 
2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime 

and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP). 

2.2 In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the 
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant 
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in 
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed 
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not 
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include 
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in 
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the 
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people 
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and 
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10). 
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and 
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for 
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. 
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure 
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are 
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

2.4 The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an 
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town 
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow 
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a 
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on 
the premises.

2.5 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors 
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the 
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing 
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and 
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will 
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises 
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be 
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the 
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency 
could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety. 

2.6 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the 
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with 
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these 
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal 
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to 

Page 57



undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or 
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are 
retained at the licensed premises.

The licensing objectives Public Nuisance
2.15 The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through 
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate to 
prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club 
premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this 
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the effect 
of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and working 
(including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which may be 
disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise nuisance, light 
pollution, noxious smells and litter.

2.16 Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It is 
however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common law 
meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living and 
working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area of the 
licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the adverse effects of 
artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is prejudicial to health. 

2.17 Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to 
control the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple 
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular 
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain time. 
More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber speaker 
mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate. However, 
conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in circumstances 
where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter 16). Any conditions 
appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should be tailored to the type, 
nature and characteristics of the specific premises and its licensable activities. Licensing 
authorities should avoid inappropriate or disproportionate measures that could deter 
events that are valuable to the community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for 
example, are expensive to purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable 
burden for smaller venues.

2.18 As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate in 
certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect those 
living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the approach of 
licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of prevention and when 
their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be aware of the fact that other 
legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in relevant representations and 
additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19 Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions 
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive 
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the 
early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep or 
are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live music 
between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to noise 
emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any disturbance 
anticipated as customers enter and leave.

Page 58



2.20 Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting 
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may 
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities 
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues. 

2.21 Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the 
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in 
antisocial behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly 
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant 
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits from 
the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if they 
wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside, and to 
respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

The licensing objectives Protection of Children from harm 

2.22 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children  from 
moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from 
the harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as 
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also 
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking 
licensing functions. 

2.23 The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to 
children. Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which 
are appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover, 
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered 
in circumstances where:
• adult entertainment is provided;
• a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving 
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the 
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming 
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);
• it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
• there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
• in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol 
for consumption on the premises.

2.24 It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at 
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate 
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment 
with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what 
amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, 
responsible  authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point 
carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-
dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual 
sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong and offensive language. 

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times 
at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for 
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of 
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure 

Page 59



that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not 
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises. 

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when 
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be 
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities 
taking place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age 
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include: 
• restrictions on the hours when children may be present; 
• restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when 
particular specified activities are taking place;
• restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;
• age restrictions (below 18);
• restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;
• requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of 
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied 
by an adult); and
• full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 
taking place.

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about 
child protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate 
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to 
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include, 
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to 
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence 
to the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as 
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old 
with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the 
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this 
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a 
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in 
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what 
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively. 

Page 60



Appendix 8 – Pool of Conditions

Page 61



Page 62



Page 63



Page 64



Page 65



Page 66



Page 67



Page 68



Page 69



Page 70



Page 71



Page 72



Page 73



Page 74



Page 75



Page 76



Page 77



Page 78



Page 79



Page 80



LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE A – 1 AUGUST 2018

REVIEW OF A PREMISES LICENCE – BUDGENS, 1 CHERTSEY ROAD, WOKING

Executive Summary

This report considers an application to review the Premises Licence (PL) for the above 
premises from Surrey Police.

Recommendations

The Committee is requested to:

RESOLVE THAT the report be considered and the application be determined 
accordingly. 

The Sub-Committee has the authority to determine the above recommendation.

Background Papers:

Application form 
Operating Schedule
Representations from Statutory Bodies and Interested Parties
Sustainability Impact Assessment
Equalities Impact Assessment

Reporting Person:

Matthew Cobb, Senior Licensing Officer
Ext. 3650, E Mail: Matthew.Cobb@woking.gov.uk

Contact Person:

Matthew Cobb, Senior Licensing Officer
Ext. 3650, E Mail: Matthew.Cobb@woking.gov.uk

Date Published:

23 July 2018

Page 81

Agenda Item 5.



1.0 Summary of Proposal 

Application Type: Review of Premises Licence

Variation: No

Site Address: 1 Chertsey Road, Woking, Surrey, GU21 5AA

Applicant Surrey Police, Woking

Application Ref: 17/00056/PREMIS

2.0 Description of Premises and Existing Licence

2.1 Medium sized retail shop with off-licence

2.2 Current licensed hours of operation are:

Sale of Alcohol, Monday to Saturday inclusive – 08:00 to 23:00

Sale of Alcohol, Monday to Saturday inclusive – 10:00 to 22:30

2.3 The Premises Licence is attached as Appendix 1

3.0 Details of Application

3.1 Surrey Police have called for a review of the premises licence on the grounds that it 
believes the Licensing Objectives of prevention of crime and disorder and the protection 
of children from harm are being adversely affected. The full application is attached as 
Appendix 2.  

4.0 Promotion of Licensing Objectives

4.1 The Sub-Committee is obliged to determine this application with a view to promoting the 
licensing objectives which are:

 The prevention of crime and disorder;

 Public safety;

 The prevention of public nuisance;

 The protection of children from harm.

5.0 Relevant Representations

5.1 The following representations have been received in relation to the application:

Responsible Authorities

Surrey Police: Original review application, attached as Appendix 2

Surrey Fire and Rescue Service: No representations received.

Environmental Health (WBC): No representations received.

Page 82



Planning Authority (WBC): No representations received.

Social Services (SCC): No representations received.

Trading Standards: Representations received, attached as Appendix 3

Interested Parties

Members of Public: No representations received. 

Other Persons: Representations received from Welcome Skills on 
behalf of Mr Nurul Islam. Attached as Appendix 6. 

6.0 Policy Considerations

6.1 In making its decision, the Sub-Committee is obliged to have regard to the relevant 
national Guidance (Appendix 4) and the Council’s own Licensing Policy.  The Sub-
Committee must also have regard to all of the representations made and the evidence it 
hears, and its duty under S17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998.

6.2 The Licensing Officer considered the following policies taken from the ‘Licensing Policy 
for Woking Borough’ should be considered for this application. 

From Woking Borough Council Licensing Policy 2016-2021

6.5 The Council can only attach conditions to licences where necessary to ensure the licensing 
objectives are served and may include conditions drawn from the Pool of Conditions relating to 
the licensing objectives contained in the guidance issued under the Act. When considering 
conditions, the Council will focus on the direct impact of the activities taking place at licensed 
premises on members of the public living, working or engaged in normal activity in the area 
concerned and those matters which are within the control of the applicant on the premises and 
in the vicinity of those premises. Whether or not incidents can be regarded as in the vicinity of 
licensed premises is a question of fact and will depend upon the particular circumstances of the 
case.

6.6 The Council acknowledges that licensing law is not the primary mechanism for the general 
control of anti-social behaviour by individuals once they are away from the premises and 
beyond the direct control of the individual, club or business holding the licence, certificate or 
authorisation concerned.

7.0 The Licensing Objectives (Prevention of Crime and Disorder)

7.1  The Council will carry out its licensing functions with a view to promoting the prevention of 
crime and disorder and will seek to ensure that licensees take measures to regulate the 
behaviour of persons whilst on their premises, or in the immediate vicinity of the premises as 
they seek to enter or leave.

7.2   In addition to the requirement for the Council to promote this licensing objective, it also has 
a duty under Section 17 of the Crime and Disorder Act 1998 to exercise its functions with due 
regard to the likely effect of the exercise of those functions on, and to do all it reasonably can to 

Page 83



prevent, crime and disorder in the Borough.

7.3 The Council will expect applicants to include in their operating schedules the steps they 
propose to take to reduce/deter crime and disorder. These steps will vary from premises to 
premises and according to the type of licensable activities that are to be carried on.

In particular, the Council will expect applicants to address the following matters.

 Physical security features e.g. use of toughened drinking glasses.

 Procedures for the risk assessment of alcohol promotions, such as ‘happy hours’ 
(please see 7.5).

 The use of licensed door supervisors.

 Amount of seating to be provided to reduce issues in high volume vertical drinking 
(HVVD) establishments. 

 Training given to staff in crime prevention measures.

 Measures agreed with the police to reduce crime and disorder.

Participation in the Woking Pubwatch Scheme will be expected of licence applicants for all bar, 
pub and nightclub premises in the Borough.

7.4   N/A

7.5   N/A

7.6 The Council recognises that licence conditions should not replicate offences that are set out 
in the Licensing Act or other legislation. With this in mind, the Council will, when considering an 
application for a premises licence upon the receipt of relevant representations, consider 
attaching conditions to licences and certificates to deter and prevent crime and disorder both 
inside and in the immediate vicinity of the premises. These may include conditions drawn from 
the Pool of Conditions relating to the prevention of crime and disorder. Any such conditions 
imposed will be tailored to the style and characteristics of the premises and the type of activities 
that take place there.

8.0 The Licensing Objectives (Protection of Children from Harm)

10.1 The Council will carry out their licensing functions with a view to protecting children from 
harm. In addition to the specific prohibitions in the Licensing Act on the access of 
unaccompanied children to certain premises between certain hours, licensees will be expected 
to take measures to ensure the safety and welfare of children on their premises. The Council is 
committed to reducing the problems arising from under-age drinking and to protect children 
from moral, psychological or physical harm. 

10.2 The Council will expect applicants to include in their operating schedules the steps they 
propose to take to prevent harm to children. In particular, the Council will expect applicants to 
address the following matters within their operating schedules.

 Where alcohol is to be sold, applicants must include details of the measures they 

Page 84



propose to prevent the supply of alcohol to children. It is expected that:

a)  in addition to requiring passports or photo driving licences, a proof of age 
scheme approved and accredited by the Proof of Age Standards Scheme 
(PASS) e.g. Citizen Card, Connexions Card, Portman Card will be in operation

b) staff will receive regular and adequate training on the law and practice relating to 
age restricted sales (including challenging purchasers and checking 
identification), such training to be properly documented and records made 
available for inspection. Trading Standards encourage retailers to train their staff 
specifically about what forms of ID are acceptable and how to check that they 
are genuine in order to avoid selling to young people using fake ID (currently a 
growing concern due to the easy access to fakes online and the increasing 
sophistication of fakes).

c) registers of refused sales will be maintained and made available for inspection. 

d) a policy of requesting suitable photographic identification from those appearing 
to be below or close an age limit above the legal age for alcohol sale/purchase , 
for example, Challenge 25. In line with Trading Standards, the adoption of a 
'Challenge 25' age verification policy is particularly recommended as this is now 
accepted as best practice by industry and enforcing authorities.

 Applicants must indicate whether they are signatories to the Portman Group Code of 
Practice (see 10.6.6).

 Where children are expected to attend regulated entertainment, the measures proposed 
to ensure their safety.

10.3 The Surrey Child Protection Unit will be consulted on applications for premises licences 
and club premises certificates.

10.4 Applicants needing advice on how to avoid age-restricted sales may contact Surrey 
Trading Standards.

10.5 The Council will consider attaching conditions to licences and certificates to prevent 
harm to children, and these may include items drawn from the Pool of Conditions relating to the 
protection of children from harm. 

10.6 Child access to licensed premises

10.6.1 The Council will consider the individual merits of each application before deciding 
whether it is necessary to limit the access of children to any given premises. The following are 
examples of premises that will raise particular concern.

 Where there have been convictions of members of the current staff at the premises for 
serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for underage drinking.

 Where there is a known association with drug taking or dealing.

 Where the supply of alcohol for consumption on the premises is the exclusive or primary 
purpose of the services provided at the premises.

 Where there is a strong element of gambling on the premises (but not, for example, the 

Page 85



simple presence of a small number of cash prize gaming machines).

 Where entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature are commonly provided. 
The Council will not normally grant permission for entertainment of an adult or sexual 
nature in premises near schools, churches, youth clubs or other premises where 
children are likely to attend.

10.6.2 The Council may consider that additional steps for limiting the access of children to 
licensed premises are necessary in order to prevent harm. These steps (which may be adopted 
in combination) include:

 limitations on the hours when children may be present

 limitations on the presence of children under certain ages when particular specified 
activities are taking place

 limitations on the parts of premises to which children might be given access age 
limitations (below 18)

 Requirements for an accompanying adult (including, for example, a combination of 
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied 
by an adult)

 full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 
taking place.

10.6.3  Conditions will not be attached to licences or certificates requiring that children be 
admitted to any premises. Where no licensing restriction is necessary, this will be left to the 
discretion of the individual licensee, club or person who has been given a temporary event 
notice. Applicants for premises licences and club premises certificates may volunteer 
prohibitions and restrictions in their operating schedules if their risk assessments have 
determined that the presence of children is undesirable or inappropriate. If the Council receives 
no relevant representations, these volunteered prohibitions and restrictions will become 
conditions attaching to the licence or certificate.

10.6.4 N/A

10.6.5 The Council supports PASS, which aims to approve and accredit proof of age schemes 
to assist in preventing underage access to unsuitable premise and the purchasing of alcohol. 
This scheme, introduced by the British Retail Consortium and audited by the Trading Standards 
Institute, identifies reliable and secure proof of age schemes with the same hologram mark in 
order that retailers can easily distinguish accredited cards from forgeries or cards under 
unreliable schemes.

10.6.6 The Council supports the aims of the Portman Group and commends the Portman 
Group Code of Practice on the Naming, Packaging and Promotion of Alcoholic Drinks to all 
applicants.

 The Portman Group operates the Code on behalf of the alcohol industry with the aim of 
ensuring that all alcoholic drinks are promoted in a socially responsible manner and only 
to those aged 18 years or older.

 The Code is an important weapon in protecting children from harm because it 
addresses the naming, marketing and promotion of alcohol products in licensed 
premises in a manner which may appeal to or attract children. An independent 

Page 86



complaints panel considers complaints about products under the Code, and publishes 
their decisions on the Portman Group’s website, in the trade press and in its annual 
report.

 If a product’s packaging or point of sale advertising is found to be in breach of the Code, 
the Portman Group may issue a Retailer Alert Bulletin to notify retailers of the decision 
and ask them not to replenish stocks of any such product or to display such point of sale 
material, until the decision has been complied with.

 If a retailer continues to stock products or point of sale material which have been found 
in breach of the Code by the Independent Complaints Panel, the Portman Group may 
notify the Council and request it to take this into account, subject to legal requirements, 
when considering whether to grant, transfer, renew or revoke licences. Breaches of the 
Code may also be notified to the Local Authorities Co-ordinators of Regulatory Services 
(LACORS), which may, in some cases, lead to prosecutions under appropriate 
legislation 

 Companies may indicate their support for the Code and their willingness to abide by the 
decisions of the Independent Complaints Panel by becoming code signatories.

6.3 The “Pool of Conditions” is provided as Appendix 5.

6.4 The Sub-Committee must take such of the following steps as it considers necessary for 
the promotion of the licensing objectives:

(a) to modify the conditions of the licence; (either permanently or temporarily for up to 
three months);

(b) to exclude a licensable activity from the scope of the licence; (either permanently or 
temporarily for up to three months);

(c) to remove the designated premises supervisor (not applicable where alcohol is not 
licensed)

(d) to suspend the licence for a period not exceeding three months;

(e) to revoke the licence;

Committee may also offer informal advice and guidance or take no further action.
6.5 The Sub-Committee is asked to note that it may not modify the conditions or reject the 

whole or part of the application merely because it considers it desirable to do so.  It must 
actually be necessary in order to promote the licensing objectives. 

7.0 Implications

Financial

7.1 There are no significant financial implications. The applicant, licence holder and any 
interested parties or responsible authorities who have made a representation have the 
right of appeal to a Magistrates’ Court (within 21 days starting the day after the date a 
decision is reached) should they feel any decision is unjust. Although there is a possibility 

Page 87



costs may be awarded against the Council where decisions are overturned, case law 
shows this as unlikely where the Council are shown to be acting in accordance with their 
duties as Licensing Authority based on information supplied at the time.

Human Resource/Training and Development

7.2 None. 

Community Safety

7.3 Improving standards and ensuring compliance can potentially improve community safety 
in line with the Licensing Objectives as set out in the Licensing Act 2003

Risk Management

7.4 The risks to the Council associated with determining an application are:

 Failure to undertake our statutory responsibilities within required timescales;

 Making a decision that could be challenged by the applicant via an appeal to the 
Magistrates Court with the possible consequence of costs being awarded against 
the Council; and

 Making a decision that compromises Community Safety.
7.5 These risks have been dealt with in the report under section 6.0 by highlighting that the 

Sub-Committee is required to determine this application for a premises licences under the 
Licensing Act 2003 having due regard to the four licensing objectives, national guidance, 
the local licensing policy, relevant representations and evidence presented at the 
hearings.  Determining applications in this way will reduce the risk of the decisions of the 
Council being open to challenge via appeal to the Magistrates court and promote 
Community Safety in the Borough. 

Sustainability

7.6 The four licensing objectives addressed in the Council’s licensing policy, which the Sub-
Committee is obliged to have regard to in making its decision, are in line with the 
Council’s sustainability aims.

8.0 Conclusions

8.1 The Committee is asked to consider the review application, contents of this report and its 
appendices, the evidence and representations presented, answers to questions posed 
and deliver its decision with reasons.

REPORT ENDS

Appendix 1 – Budgens Premises Licence

Page 88



Page 89



Page 90



Page 91



Page 92



Page 93



Page 94



Page 95



Page 96



Page 97



Appendix 2 – Surrey Police Application for a Review

Page 98



Page 99



Page 100



Page 101



Page 102



Page 103



Page 104



Appendix 3 – Trading Standards representation

Page 105



Page 106



Page 107



Appendix 4 – Excerpts from National Guidance

The licensing objectives Crime and disorder 
2.1 Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime 

and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety Partnership 
(CSP). 

2.2 In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with the 
Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant 
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in 
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly licensed 
and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies are not 
being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may include 
making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led operations in 
conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies. Similarly, the 
provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to ensure that people 
who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do not enter the premises and 
ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3 Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder 
including the prevention of illegal working in licensed premises (see paragraph 10.10). 
For example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the 
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately 
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and 
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises for 
the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its customers. 
But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be appropriate to ensure 
that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to ensure that certain areas are 
properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute over the terms of the condition.

2.4 The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an 
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and town 
centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems allow 
managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and facilitate a 
rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers and staff on 
the premises.

2.5 Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises supervisors 
should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be the 
responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the licensing 
authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are competent and 
appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key person who will 
usually be responsible for the day to day management of the premises by the premises 
licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A condition of this kind may only be 
justified as appropriate in rare circumstances where it can be demonstrated that, in the 
circumstances associated with particular premises, poor management competency 
could give rise to issues of crime and disorder and public safety. 

2.6 The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the 
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work with 
Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these 
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of illegal 
working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence holder to 

Page 108



undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed premises or 
requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work check are 
retained at the licensed premises.

The licensing objectives Protection of Children from harm 

2.22 The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children  from 
moral, psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from 
the harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such as 
exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context of 
exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must also 
consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when undertaking 
licensing functions. 

2.23 The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to 
children. Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and which 
are appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered. Moreover, 
conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly considered 
in circumstances where:
• adult entertainment is provided;
• a member or members of the current management have been convicted for serving 
alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other than in the 
context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds consuming 
beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table meal);
• it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
• there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
• in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of alcohol 
for consumption on the premises.

2.24 It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at 
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate 
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide entertainment 
with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an exhaustive list of what 
amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual nature. Applicants, 
responsible  authorities and licensing authorities will need to consider this point 
carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease, lap-, table- or pole-
dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific incidents, feigned or actual 
sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong and offensive language. 

2.25 Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times 
at which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for 
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of 
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps to ensure 
that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their premises, is not 
displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises. 

2.26 Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when 
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to be 
taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27 Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities 
taking place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age 
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can include: 
• restrictions on the hours when children may be present; 

Page 109



• restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when 
particular specified activities are taking place;
• restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;
• age restrictions (below 18);
• restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;
• requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of 
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be accompanied 
by an adult); and
• full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities are 
taking place.

2.29 Licensing authorities should give considerable weight to representations about 
child protection matters. In addition to the responsible authority whose functions relate 
directly to child protection, the Director of Public Health may also have access to 
relevant evidence to inform such representations. These representations may include, 
amongst other things, the use of health data about the harms that alcohol can cause to 
underage drinkers. Where a responsible authority, or other person, presents evidence 
to the licensing authority linking specific premises with harms to children (such as 
ambulance data or emergency department attendances by persons under 18 years old 
with alcohol- related illnesses or injuries) this evidence should be considered, and the 
licensing authority should also consider what action is appropriate to ensure this 
licensing objective is effectively enforced. In relation to applications for the grant of a 
licence in areas where evidence is presented on high levels of alcohol-related harms in 
persons aged under 18, it is recommended that the licensing authority considers what 
conditions may be appropriate to ensure that this objective is promoted effectively. 

Page 110



31

Appendix 5 – Pool of Conditions

Page 111



Page 112



Page 113



Page 114



Page 115



Page 116



Page 117



Page 118



Page 119



Page 120



Page 121



Page 122



Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



Page 130



Page 131



Page 132



Page 133




	Agenda
	4. Review of a Premises Licence - Harry's Store, 2 Walton Road, Woking
	5. Review of a Premises Licence - Budgens, 1 Chertsey Road, Woking
	Budgens appendix 6


